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The Rutland Learning Trust 

 

Report of the Trustees 

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019 
  

The trustees who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their 

report with the financial statements of the academy trust for the year ended 31st August 2019. The trustees have 

adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to 

charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015) and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

 

The Rutland Learning Trust is a Multi-Academy Trust in the county of Rutland. It comprises of nine smaller than 

average primary schools. Another school has an Academy Order and is expected to join early in 2020.  An additional 

school is also working with the Trust via a Memorandum of Understanding - from September 2019. 

 

 

Principal activities 

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of The Rutland Learning Trust to provide 

education for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 4 and 11.  In accordance with the Articles of Association 

the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Government" approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The 

Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting pupils to the Academy and that the 

curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum. 

 

 

Constitution 

The multi-academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity with no share capital (registration no. 

9199785) and comprises of Ketton CE Primary School, St Nicholas CE Primary School, Langham CE Primary School, 

Whissendine CE Primary School, Cottesmore Academy, Exton and Greetham CE Primary School, Great Casterton CE 

Primary School, Empingham CE Primary School and Uppingham CE Primary School. The Multi-Academy Trust's 

Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the multi-academy trust. 

 

The Trustees of The Rutland Learning Trust Ltd are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of 

company law. The Charitable Company is known as The Rutland Learning Trust. 

 

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on 

page 1.  

 

Members' liability 

Each member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while 

he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not 

exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.   

 

Governors' indemnities 

The Academy has joined the DfE/ESFA Risk Pooling Agreement, which includes Governor's liability indemnity 

insurance.  

 

Recruitment and appointment of Members and Trustees 
In the Rutland Learning Trust the majority of Members will be appointees or representatives from the Peterborough 

Diocese Church Schools Trust. Members of the Trust can be also be nominated by either the Secretary of State for 

Education, or the Academy Trust.   The articles of association require the members of the trust to appoint up to twelve 

trustees to be responsible for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the management of 

the Academy. In the Rutland Learning Trust the majority of Trustees will be Foundation Governors.  
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 Governance structure and lines of accountability  

 Please refer to the Rutland Learning Trust - Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

When a school first joins the Trust, LGBs and their governors transition to the new structure as they are. Where LGBs 

need to appoint new governors, the Trustees, in consultation with LGBs, ratify all new governor appointments. The 

Diocese must also approve the appointment of Foundation Governors in the case of Church of England Schools.  The 

Trustees have the right to appoint additional governors where appropriate and to remove governors. More information 

about local governor recruitment, application forms and appointments is available on the Trust website. 

All RLT academies will have a Local Governing Body to which a range of decisions is delegated.   

Where the Trustees have concerns about the performance of any of the academies within the Trust, their initial response 

would always be to offer support from within the Trust – with a view to maintaining current levels of delegation.   

In some circumstances the Trustees may appoint additional governors as a means of supporting decision-making within 

schools.  However, the Trustees have the right to determine in certain circumstances that a Local Governing Body 

should have reduced decision-making powers. This will be unusual; a decision to remove delegated authority from a 

Local Governing Body will be made according to criteria outlined below.  

Where a school joins the Trust as a sponsored academy, however, a restricted scheme of delegation may also be 

considered / implemented until the school meets a range of criteria for re-instatement of delegated powers.    



 

 Page 4 

The Rutland Learning Trust 

 

Report of the Trustees 

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019 
  

 

Factors which may influence the Trustees decision about the level of delegation to each Local Governing Body include:    

•  School performance - attainment and achievement 

•  A recent Ofsted/DfE report 

•  Financial and administrative performance  

•  Leadership and governance capacity and capability 

•  Safeguarding and wellbeing concerns  

•  Health and safety issues 

•  Significant parental concerns/complaints  

 

The Rutland Learning Trust is committed to transparency in reporting. This means that reports about academies are 

shared with its LGB. Likewise, LGB minutes are reported to the Board of Trustees.  

With the Trust’s School Improvement Team, the LGB supports the Trustees’ in identifying and addressing areas of 

concern in the academy. Where Trustees are concerned about an academy, a Trustee Champion and the CEO will meet 

with representatives of the LGB to discuss the issue. The LGB would have an opportunity to consider and respond to 

any formal proposals for potential changes to the scheme of delegation made by the Trustees, which would then be 

considered in a meeting of Trustees and LGB. Proposals for change might include additional support, additional 

governors, replacement governors, partial or full withdrawal of delegation. 

The scheme of delegation is the expected arrangement for all RLT academies. In any individual situation where the 

Trustees determine to vary delegation, a specific schedule would be set for the circumstances of the school concerned. 

Where serious situations arise suddenly, such as gross financial mismanagement, a serious breach of safeguarding 

obligations or an adverse Ofsted inspection (any judgement less than good), Trustees will act swiftly to review 

delegated powers. 

For those academies with local level delegation of decision-making powers:     

Local Governing Body (LGB) responsibilities may include deciding certain policies, monitoring whether the school is 

working within the agreed Trust and statutory policies, whether standards are being met and if the money is being well 

spent.  The LGB will use its detailed knowledge and engagement with stakeholders to ensure that its school is being 

well served by the Trust - and has direct access to the Board through the CEO or Trustee Champions if there are 

concerns.   

 

The CEO and academy Head teachers 

In the Scheme of Delegation (SoD) the Trustees delegate responsibility for the performance of the Trust, including the 

performance of the academies within the Trust, to the chief executive officer (CEO). This means that as the CEO is 

accountable to the Board for the performance of the Trust as a whole, the CEO will report to the Board on the 

performance of the Trust including on the performance of the Trust’s schools, although this may be supplemented by 

monitoring reports from the LGBs.   

 

The CEO is performance-managed by the Trust Board with support from an independent external adviser - if 

appropriate - appointed by the Board. In the scheme of delegation, the Trust Board delegates responsibility for the 

performance management of academy principals to the LGB, in accordance with Trust policy and with the full 

involvement of the CEO and/or an independent external adviser, appointed by the Trust Board. 
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The role of the Members 

 

The members of the Trust have a different status to Trustees. Originally, they will have been the signatories to the 

memorandum of understanding and will have agreed the Trust’s first Articles of Association (a document which 

outlines the governance structure and how the Trust will operate).  The Articles of Association will also describe how 

members are recruited and replaced, and how many of the Trustees the members can appoint to the Trust Board.  The 

members appoint Trustees to ensure that the Trust’s charitable object is carried out and so must be able to remove 

Trustees if they fail to fulfil this responsibility. Accordingly, the Trust Board submits an annual report on the 

performance of the Trust to the members.  Members are also responsible for approving any amendments made to the 

Trust’s Articles of Association.  While members are permitted to be appointed as Trustees, in order to retain a degree 

of separation of powers between the members and the Trust Board, and in line with DfE current expectations, only one 

member may be a Trustees. In RLT’s case that is the Chair of the Trust Board.  Employees of the academy Trust are 

not permitted to be members.   

 

The Role of the Trustees (or Directors) 

The Trustees are the charity Trustees (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charities Act 2011) and are responsible 

for the general control and management of the administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions set out in 

the memorandum and articles of association.   

 

The Board of Trustees is the accountable Committee for the performance of all schools within the Trust and as such 

must:   

1.Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction 

2.Hold the executive to account for the educational performance of the schools and their pupils, and the performance 

management of staff 

3.Oversee the financial performance of the Trust and make sure its money is well spent. 

       

Because Trustees are bound by both charity and company law, the terms ‘Trustees’ and ‘directors’ are often used 

interchangeably.  We use the term Trustee as it avoids the possible confusion caused when executive leaders are called 

directors but are not company directors and Trustees. The Trust Board is permitted to exercise all the powers of the 

Academy Trust.  The Trust Board will delegate to the chief executive responsibility for the day to day operations of the 

Trust. The Trustees can determine whether to delegate any governance functions.  

 

In an emergency, the functions which the Board has reserved to itself for decision may be exercised by the Chair, after 

having consulted with one other Board Member or the Chief Executive. The Chair is required to report any actions or 

decisions so taken to the next formal meeting of the Board for ratification, with an explanation of why the emergency 

decision was required.   

 

 

The Trust has the right to review and adapt its governance structure at any time which includes removing 

delegation. 

 

The Trustees may establish committees either with delegated authority to make decisions or to provide advice and 

support, informing the overall work of the Trust Board. However, these committees are not legally accountable for 

statutory functions – the Trust Board retains overall accountability.  The responsibilities of these Board committees are 

set out in their Terms of Reference: Scrutiny, Audit, CEO Appraisal, Safeguarding.   
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The role of Local Governing Bodies  Individuals who sit on local governing bodies (LGBs) are referred to as ‘local 

governors’. This is because Trustees can delegate governance functions to the local level.   The continuous focus on 

Teaching and Learning and high standards requires local governors (particularly Chairs of Governors) to be able to 

interpret data and monitor performance expertly.   

 

Composition 

-  Chair 

-  Vice 

-  Executive Head teacher/Head teacher 

-  Staff member 

-  At least 2 parents 

-  At least 3 Foundation Governors      (St Nicholas must maintain a Foundation Governor majority overall) 

     

Local Governing Body   

The LGB meets at least 4 times a year  

A LGB Resources Committee meets at least 4 times a year to consider – Health and Safety, Finance, Personnel, 

Premises. The responsibilities and authorities of Local Governing Bodies are set out in the Scheme of Delegation.     

 

The core purposes of the Local Governing Body are: 

• To provide advice, support and challenge to the headteacher in leading the school, helping all its pupils to thrive, 

    guarding its ethos and managing its relationship with its community; 

• To work with the Trust CEO on the performance management of the headteacher;  

• To report annually to the Trust Board on the school's achievements and areas for development. 

 

The role of an LGB is an important one. It is to provide focused, authentic governance for the Academy at a local level, 

which does not duplicate the role of the Trustees. The LGB monitors the Academy's key performance indicators and 

acts as a critical friend to the Headteacher and the Academy's senior leadership team, providing support and challenge 

where appropriate. The LGBs carry out their functions in relation to their respective Academy on behalf of the Trust 

Board and in accordance with policies determined by the Trust Board. The act of delegation from the Trust Board to the 

LGBs is a delegation of powers and duties, not a delegation or shedding of responsibilities. The responsibilities and 

authorities of Local Governing Bodies are set out in the Scheme of Delegation.     

 

The Role of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)  

The CEO has the delegated responsibility for the operation of the Trust including the performance of the Trust’s 

academies and so the CEO holds academy Head teachers to account and can performance manage the executive and 

academy Head teachers.  Where the performance management of the academy Head teacher is delegated to a Local 

Governing sub-committee (LGB) this will be with the full involvement of the CEO and /or an external adviser 

appointed by the Trust Board and in accordance with Trust policy. The CEO is the Accounting Officer so has overall 

responsibility for the operation of the academy Trust’s financial responsibilities and must ensure that the organisation is 

run with financial effectiveness and stability; avoiding waste and securing value for money.  In this role the CEO will 

have the power to challenge decisions made by Local Governing Bodies and may seek reconsideration of those 

decisions. The CEO leads the School Improvement and Central team of the Academy Trust. The CEO will delegate 

aspects of the executive management functions to the Central Business Team: CFO, Business Manager, HR Manager, 

Lead Premises Officer. 

 

The Role of the Academy Head teacher 

The academy Head teacher is responsible for the day to day leadership and management of the academy as outlined in 

their job descriptions. The academy Head teacher remains the lead professional in the academy and reports to the LGB 

on matters which have been delegated – and may have responsibilities delegated to them by the LGB.  This scheme 

delegates responsibility for the annual performance management of the academy Head teacher to the CEO, to be 

undertaken in accordance with Trust policy and with the full involvement of the Local Governing Sub-Committee 

and/or external adviser appointed by the Trust Board.   
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

 
The Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Head teacher (CEO) will be appointed by the Trustees of the Trust, to lead the 

Rutland Learning Trust team to achieve the ambitions of the Trust and will be accountable to the Board through the 

Chair. The CEO will also be required to report to the Members and other key stakeholders, including the DfE, the 

Regional Schools Commissioner, ESFA and other statutory parties. 

 

The Chief Executive Officer/ Head teacher (CEO) will advise the Board and lead the team in a way which is aligned 

with our mission and values. 

 

Principal Accountabilities and Responsibilities 

 

 Achieve the ambitions of the Trust as agreed annually. 

 Working with the Trustees to develop the vision, plans, and budgets setting out how the Trust and its constituent  

    academies will move forward towards the Trust’s strategic intent each year. 

 To ensure compliance with the requirements of the Master Funding Agreement and Supplemental Funding  

    Agreements for the Academy Trust. 

 To be the Accounting Officer for the Trust, personally responsible for the propriety and regularity of the public 

    finances. 

 Agree delegations with the Trust Board to the Local Governing Bodies and Head teachers of the member 

    Academies for their day to day operations, while agreeing with the Head teachers which matters are most 

    effectively discharged collectively. 

 To ensure compliance with the Rutland Learning Trust Scheme of Delegation. 

 To lead the Trust in achieving excellence with a focus on continuous improvement and raising standards. 

 To be wholly accountable for all aspects of Teaching and Learning and Standards across the Trust and act as 

    principal adviser to the Board of Trustees on all areas of provision. 

 Review the progress of the Academies within the Trust, liaising with their Local Governing Bodies, and take action 

    as necessary to ensure that progress and improvement is delivered and maintained, with a drive towards agreed    

    levels of progress and the highest grade of external validation. 

 Provide accurate and timely reports of activities and performance to the Trust Board, and all other stakeholders in 

    accordance with requirements, devising succinct but informing summary reporting systems. 

 Ensure the Board and schools are advised of current education policy or issues. 

 Utilise the collective strengths of member schools for the benefit of all members of the Trust, so that students 

    receive the best possible outcomes. 

 To provide motivational and inspirational leadership at all levels of the organisation. 

 Take a leading role in key plans and documents such as the Trust’s long term strategic plan, self-evaluation and 

    school improvement plans of the Academies. 

 Develop pan‐academy strategies to support the economic life and well‐being of the communities where we are 

    represented, in the sharing of facilities and ideas. 

 Act as an ambassador for the Trust in developing partnerships and links with stakeholders that promote a positive 

    profile of the Trust. 

 Be responsible for meeting the demands of changing legislation, new initiatives and changing practice. 

 Hold line management responsibility for all of the Head teachers in the Trust. 

 Develop and maintain strong working relationships with the Head teachers, Chairs of Governors, Governors, 

    Trades Unions and other key personnel within the Academies and Trust, to ensure the effective and collegiate 

    sharing of communication and knowledge. 

 To be responsible for developing a diverse, innovative, inclusive and personalised curriculum offer for all pupils 

    across the Trust. 

 Support the need for effective communication, both internal and external to the Trust, including liaising with the 

    local and national media. 

 Convene and lead the Executive team of Head teachers and others across the Trust to deliver a collective and 

    consistent strategy, determining the best means of delivery. 

 Implement strategies and reputational management to ensure we are the ‘go to’ MAT in our local area which will 

    result in achievement of recruitment targets and maintain attendance.



 

 Page 8 

The Rutland Learning Trust 

 

Report of the Trustees 

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019 
  

 Work with the Finance (Audit and Due Diligence) Trustees and Chief Finance Officer to drive efficiencies and  

    collaborative working across the Trust. 

 Identify key agencies, individuals and groups that could enhance the work of the Trust, and secure their   

    partnership for the benefit of the Trust. 

 Develop strategies for the generation of additional revenue and resources for the Trust. 

 Support the Chair of the Trustees in the recruitment and induction of Chairs and Governors for member 

    Academies. 

 

Oversight of new schools / projects 

 Instigate and co‐ordinate applications for the transfer of new schools into the Trust.  

 Ensure appropriate due diligence and risk assessment is carried out, and present such applications to the Audit 

    Committee and then Board for consideration. 

 Direct and manage transfers of schools into our Multi-Academy Trust, ensuring that appropriate and timely project 

    management is in place to achieve a smooth transition, complying with all appropriate protocols. 

 Lead and work alongside functional specialists as required to achieve objectives. 

 Lead and motivate incoming schools into the ethos of the Trust. 

 

The CEO is an ex officio Trustee. 

 

TRUSTEES - AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit Committee is a Committee of the Trustees and is authorised to investigate any activity within its terms of 

reference or specifically delegated to it by the Trust Board. It is authorised to request any information it requires from 

any employee, external audit, internal audit or other assurance provider. 

 

The Audit Committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or independent professional advice it considers necessary, 

normally in conjunction with the Accounting Officer and/or Chair of Governors. However, the Audit Committee may 

not incur expenditure in excess of £10,000 in doing so without the prior approval of the Trust Board. 

 

The role of the Audit Committee is to maintain an oversight of the Rutland Learning Trust’s governance, risk 

management, internal control and value for money framework.  

 

It will report its findings annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the Rutland 

Learning Trust’s annual reporting requirements. The Audit Committee has no executive powers or operational 

responsibilities/duties. 

 

The duties of the Audit Committee are to: 

 

Advise the Trust Board Accounting Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness of its governance, risk management, 

internal control and vfm systems and frameworks. The Audit Committee will produce an annual report/minutes in this 

regard. 

 

Advise the Trust Board and LGB on the appointment, re-appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the external and 

regulatory auditor. 

 

Advise the Trust Board and LGB on the need for, and then, where appropriate, the appointment, re-appointment, 

dismissal and remuneration of, an internal auditor or other assurance provider to enable the Board to sign the corporate 

governance statement in the annual accounts. 

 

Advise the Trust Board on an appropriate programme of work to be delivered by independent assurance providers 

(external auditors and responsible officer). This programme of work to be derived from the Audit Committee’s regard 

of the key risks faced by the Trust, the assurance framework in place and its duty to report to the Board.  
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Review the external auditor’s annual planning document and approve the planned audit approach. 

 

Receive reports (annual reports, management letters etc.) from the external auditor and other bodies, for example the 

ESFA or DfE, and consider any issues raised, the associated management response and action plans. Where deemed 

appropriate, reports should be referred to the Board or other committee for information and action. 

 

Regularly monitor outstanding audit recommendations from whatever source and ensure any delays to 

implementation dates are reasonable. 

 

Review the Trust’s fraud response plan and ensure that all allegations of fraud or irregularity are managed and 

investigated appropriately. 

 

Consider any additional services delivered by the external auditor or other assurance provider and ensure 

appropriate independence is maintained. 

 

Ensure appropriate cooperation and coordination of the work of the external auditor and responsible officer. 

 

Meet with the external auditor and responsible officer, without management present, at least annually. 

 

Establish Due Diligence protocols, processes and procedures for schools wanting to join our Multi-Academy Trust.  

Evaluate the effectiveness of our Due Diligence procedures.  

 
TRUSTEES 

Scrutiny and Policy Committee 

 

In line with the trust’s arrangements – monitor, evaluate, and report to the Trustees on the implementation and 

impact of an academy's curriculum and the quality of teaching and learning on targets, standards and pupil 

achievement. 

Maintain a consistent focus on checking the effectiveness of the Trust Development Plan: recognise and celebrate 

achievement towards achieving our Key Performance Indicators – identify areas for development. 

Review policies as outlined in the monitoring and evaluation schedule.  

 

Curriculum and Assessment 

 Ratify Trust targets for educational attainment and standards.  

 Monitor and report to the Trust on the achievement of targets and pupil/student progress.  

 Review and recommend to the Trust for approval the academy's curriculum policy and development/ 

    improvement plan.  

 Review arrangements for challenging the Academy Headteacher and senior leadership team to continually 

    improve outcomes.  

 Ensure sufficiency and adequacy of data and information relating to standards and attainment.  

 

Once policies, procedures, plans are approved - monitor, evaluate and report progress to the Trust on: 

 The effectiveness of the academy's leadership and management, curriculum policy and the quality of teaching 

    and learning and their impact on pupils’ achievements. 

 Compliance with statutory requirements relating to the curriculum – including RE/ collective worship, SEND 

    [statutory policy], sex education, [statutory policy], and early years foundation stage (EYFS) [statutory policy]  

    as appropriate, and for looked after children. 

 The effectiveness of policies and provision for pupils with additional or special educational needs, and other 

    needs and the impact of targeted funding e.g. Pupil premium on pupil/student progress and attainment.  

 Preparedness for OFSTED and SIAMS inspections.  

 

Policies, procedures and plans  

 Develop and/or regularly review and evaluate the effectiveness of all trust-wide, framework, or academy 

    specific policies and procedures within the remit of this sub-committee.  
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SAFEGUARDING TRUSTEE 

The Safeguarding Trustee will ensure: 

 All schools have a culture in which safeguarding is given absolute priority and staff feel confident to report their 

    concerns. 

 Safeguarding is given appropriate priority and time on the Trust Board’s annual agenda. 

 The ‘Annual Report to Members and Trustees’ will include a statement on the impact of the safeguarding 

    procedures used across the Trust.  

 The Trust Safeguarding policy, procedures and quality assurance activities are reviewed annually.  

 There is rigorous and effective monitoring of safeguarding by all LGBs – annual report to the Trust Board.  

 There is a consistent approach to policy development, dissemination and training across all the Trust’s schools.  

 Safeguarding risks are rapidly identified and addressed in the Trust’s schools. 

 Head teachers / DSLs act as ‘critical friends’ to one another and regularly share best practice. 

 Information on safeguarding failures, ‘near misses’ and serious incidents are reported to the Trust Board and used 

    to identify areas where safeguarding needs strengthening. 

 Schemes of Delegation and Trust policies reflect best practice and identify clear lines of accountability.  
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Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees and Governors. 

 

“Induction is essential for all those governing in schools to ensure all Trustees and Governors are clear about what 

their powers and responsibilities are and that they understand the organisation they are governing.” NGA 2018 

 

Induction - Trustees 

 

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary 

induction will provide specific training on roles and responsibilities of Trustees, church governance, charity, 

educational legal and financial matters. A skills audit/profile is completed to inform appropriate training requirements.  

All new Trustees will be given a tour of RLT schools and provided with access to copies of policies, procedures, 

minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other strategic documents which they will need to undertake their role.   

 

An induction meeting with the CEO and Chair of Trustees should be undertaken within the first six weeks of 

appointment.  This meeting includes: 

 Welcome to a Multi Academy Trust Handbook - a guide for newly appointed Trustees 

 How our MAT works - staffing and structures 

 Governance structures - the role of Members, Trustees and a Local Governing Body 

 An introduction to the Rutland Learning Trust Intranet: 

    Roles and Responsibilities - Trustees and Committees   

    Meetings and minutes - dates for future meetings and draft agenda items 

    Strategic planning - Vision Aims and Ethos: Our Strategic Intent 

    RLT Transformation Plan 

    RLT Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference 

    Policies 

 Contextual information about RLT schools 

    Performance data, Finance report, Staffing, Targets 

 School improvement and quality assurance activities - ‘what we do’ 

 Organising school visits - allocating a school to ‘champion’ 

 RLT email address and intranet login details 

 Training events 

 

Important documents 

 Articles of Association (website) 

 Audited Accounts - Annual Report to Trustees (website) 

 Trust performance data (website and intranet) 

 Scheme of Delegation - Terms of Reference (website and intranet) 

 Vision and Aims - Strategic Intent (Intranet) 

 DfE Governance Handbook  

 ESFA - Academies Financial Handbook 

 Funding agreement (website) 

 

Induction - Governors 

An induction meeting with the Head teacher and Chair of Governors should be undertaken within the first six weeks 

of appointment.  This meeting includes: 

 

 Tour of the school - an introduction to key staff members 

 Staffing - names and roles 

 Contextual information about the school 

 Contact details 

 A copy of the School Governors Year Book 2019 

 A discussion about how our school works - staffing and structures:  

    Composition of the Local Governing Body – names and areas of responsibilities, a brief overview of strategic   

    intent - our key priorities, vision and aims. 
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 Briefing by Chair or Clerk to Governors on how your Local Governing Body (LGB) operates, its committees,      

proceedings and protocols at meetings. 

 Terms of reference for the LGB and committees.  

 Complete key documentation e.g. DBS, Safeguarding Policy and any other declarations of pecuniary or business      

interests 

 Complete a governor’s skills audit/ profile activity - consider areas of responsibilities or interest. 

 

 A brief introduction to the Governor Intranet and school website by the Head teacher: 

    Roles and Responsibilities - Governors 

    Meetings and minutes - dates for future meetings and draft agenda items 

    Monitoring reports 

    Vision Aims and Ethos, Whole school key Priorities 

    School Improvement Documents - Action Planning 

    Monitoring schedules 

    RLT Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference, Policies 

    Self- evaluation forms. (SEF) 

    Performance data, Finance reports, Staffing, Targets 

    Governor visits 

 RLT email address and intranet login details 

 Upcoming training events 

 

Important documents 

 Most recent Leadership report to Governors 

 School performance data 

 OFSTED Report  

 Section 48 Denominational Inspection Reports  

 Minutes of most recent meetings 

 Articles of Association (RLT website) 

 Audited Accounts - Annual Report to Trustees (RLT website) 

 Trust performance data (RLT website) 

 Scheme of Delegation - Terms of Reference (RLT website and intranet) 

 Vision and Aims of the RLT - Strategic Intent (Intranet) 

 DfE Governance Handbook  

 ESFA - Academies Financial Handbook 

 Funding agreement (RLT website) 

 Guide to the Law for School Governors 

 

 

Training for Trustees and Governors 

 

Key areas of training include: 

 Induction - annual by the Diocese and Local Authority: 

    What is good governance – roles and responsibilities for Trustees and Governors in Church schools and  

    Academies? 

 Safe recruitment for schools - safeguarding 

 Data analysis 

 Strategic Planning 

 Self-Evaluation 

 Admissions 

 School finance 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/governance-handbook
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/academies-financial-handbook
http://media.education.gov.uk/assets/files/pdf/g/governors%20guide%20may%202012.pdf
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2018/19 Trustees and Governor Training  

 Effective Governance, Part 1 of 2 

 An introduction to SEND Governance 

 Safeguarding Update for Governors 

 Effective Governance, Part 2 of 2 

 Monitoring and evaluating with rigor, Part 1 of 2 

 Understanding Data 

 Pupil Premium for Governors 

 Monitoring and evaluating with rigor, Part 2 of 2 

 Developing the role of the SEND Governor 

 Effective use of Sports Premium for Governors  

 Roles and Responsibilities of Governors and Trustees 

 Handling Complaints and Concerns 

 

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 

 

Please refer to the RLT Pay Policy as published on the Trust website.  

The following are extracts from this document.  

Determination of Leadership Group salaries: 

 Group of the School;  

 Individual Head Teacher Range (HTR); 

 Salary ranges for other members of the leadership group. 

 

For the purposes of determining the group of the school by which the HTR for the Head teacher is identified, the LGB 

Resources Committee will re-calculate annually the appropriate unit total of the school. 

 

The LGB Resources Committee will assign the school to the appropriate Head Teacher Group (HTG) whenever a new 

Head teacher is to be appointed and on such occasions as the LGB sees fit.   

 

The Head teacher/Head of School may make representations to the Review Committee to consider assigning the 

school to a new HTG.  The school must be assigned to its appropriate group not more than three years after the 

school was last assigned to a Head teacher group. 

 

If the LGB Resources Committee sees fit to change the group of the school having re-calculated the unit total of the 

school in accordance with the STPC Document and the school is entitled to be in a HTG, the LGB Resources 

Committee will identify a HTR which will ensure that the minimum of the HTR is not below the minimum of the 

salary range for the HTG. 

When a new Head teacher is appointed, the LGB Resources Committee in accordance with the STPC Document, will 

re-determine an HTR on which the Head teacher’s salary will be paid, according to the size and circumstances of the 

school.  The HTR of the school shall be a range of consecutive salary points selected by the LGB within the HTG 

range for the school. 

The Recruitment Selection Committee, set up to appoint a new Head teacher, shall determine the salary point on the 

ISR (Headteacher Range) to be paid.  The selection committee will ensure that there is room for salary progression to 

be determined by subsequent performance.  The Recruitment Selection Committee shall have regard to advice 

available from persons engaged by the LGB Resources Committee. 

 

In the event that the LGB Resources Committee agrees to the school’s Head teacher also being made the Head teacher 

of another school on a permanent basis, the Head teacher’s salary will be reviewed in accordance with STPC 

Document. Where such a decision is made then the LGB Resources Committee will also review the salary ranges of 

any other teachers affected by the arrangement by increased responsibilities.  

 

 

 



 

 Page 14 

The Rutland Learning Trust 

 

Report of the Trustees 

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019 
  

The salary ranges for a Head of School, Deputy or Assistant Head teacher shall be determined with reference to the 

school's HTR as defined by the STPC Document. 

 

Annual Review of CEO/ Executive Head Teacher/ Head teacher’s salary 

 

At the beginning of each academic year (or at any such time as the LGB Resources Committee, in consultation with 

the Head teacher may decide) the Appraisal Review governors will agree with the Head teacher, or, in the absence 

of agreement, set performance objectives together with performance indicators/measures appropriate to each 

objective.  The performance objectives will reflect priorities identified in the school’s development plan. 

The performance review and review statement will be conducted in accordance with the Appraisal policy. 

 

In the autumn term of each year, the Trustees/Governors will receive recommendations from the Appraisal Review 

team about the salary of the CEO/Executive Head teacher/ Head teacher / Head of School.  The recommendation 

shall reflect the Appraisal Review Trustees/Governors’ views based on the outcomes of the annual performance 

review and the Chair of Trustees/Governors view of the overall performance of that individual during the year.   

 

Any recommendation for movement up the HTR, on which the Head teacher is currently paid, will identify the 

recommended number of progressed points proposed.  The Head teacher will be advised of the proposed 

recommendation and may make a written response to the recommendation. 

 

The recommendation for the Head teacher will be made in a written statement to the Review Committee, giving 

reasons for the recommendation and the level of salary that it is recommended should be paid from 1st September.  

This will either be at the current point on the HTR or point(s) higher, subject to the maximum of the HTR, or any 

additional payments as identified in the STPC Document.   

 

Any recommendation for movement up the HTR, on which the CEO is currently paid, will identify the 

recommended number of progressed points proposed.  The CEO will be advised of the proposed recommendation 

and may make a written response to the recommendation. 

 

The Review Committee will consider the recommendation together with any written response from the Head teacher 

to the recommendation and make its decision known to the Head teacher in writing on the salary assessment form by 

31st December at the latest, to be backdated to 1st September.   

 

The recommendation for the CEO will be made in a written statement to the Full Trust Board, giving reasons for the 

recommendation and the level of salary that it is recommended should be paid from 1st September.  

Determination of Discretionary payments to Executive Head teachers, Head teachers or Head of Schools.  

 

The Pay Body may decide to pay additional payments to the Head teacher in accordance with paragraphs 10 of the 

STPC Document 2015. Where a decision is made to increase the Head teacher’s salary beyond the maximum of the 

appropriate HTG determined, the total sum of all payments made to the Head teacher will not exceed 25 per cent of 

the maximum of the HTG, except in exceptional circumstances. Acting allowances for an acting Head teacher, Head 

of School, acting Deputy Head teacher, acting Assistant Head teacher or a teacher acting up in a TLR post. In the 

prolonged absence of the Head teacher, Head of School, a Deputy Head teacher, an Assistant Head teacher or a TLR 

post holder, the Resource Committee - Pay Body may appoint a teacher to act up during the absence of the post 

holder.   

 

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations  

 

The Rutland Learning Trust (RLT) was formed in October 2014 and is a Multi Academy Trust (MAT).  

It currently comprises of nine schools: 

- Langham CE Primary School 

- Ketton CE Primary School  

- St Nicholas CE Primary School 

- Whissendine CE Primary School 

- Exton and Greetham CE Primary School 

- Cottesmore Academy 
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- Great Casterton CE Primary School 

- Empingham CE Primary School 

- Uppingham CE Primary School  

- Glapthorn CE Primary School, is also currently affiliated with the MAT through a Memorandum of 

    Understanding, an Academy Order is in place and the school should join the RLT MAT in early 2020.  

- Polebrook CE Primary School, is also currently affiliated with the MAT through a Memorandum of 

    Understanding, an application to become part of the RLT MAT has been submitted to the RSC.  

 

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 

 

Setting CEO pay range and scale 
Process: Affordability, Ethically, Transparency. 

 

Methodology 
1. Asses the market value - research information.  

2. Benchmarking exercise with other MATs - review CEO pay ranges from within the sector. 

3. Asses market value against affordability and sustainability 

4. Demonstrate proportionality by measure of the ratio between the lowest paid 

teacher (NQT) and the CEO salary. 

 

The Rutland Learning Trust – January 2018 

• L36-L42 based on benchmarking and research: 7-point STPCD pay scale - bespoke to the Trust 

• The proposal considered that no pay progression had taken place since 2015  

• The proposal was in line with the ‘Key’ guidance for CEO pay  

• The proposal was in line with the benchmarking – in particular with local comparisons   

• The range was within pay band 1 of the senior civil service pay ranges. 

• The proposal allowed for progression as the RLT continues to grow. 

 

Affordability 

The differential appears reasonable considering the degree of complexity and challenge associated with 

accountability for multiple schools and managing across several dispersed sites, which goes significantly beyond 

that expected of any headteacher. 

 

Pay progression 

The pay range was based on a 7-point range of the leadership scale. Movement on the scale is not annual but based 

on performance only in accordance with the current pay progression and appraisal policy. 

 

Pension 

Continuing to pay the CEO on the STPCD pay scale reinforces the case for the CEO to remain in the in the 

Teacher’s Pension Scheme. 

 

Public benefit  

The Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s guidance on Public benefit.  

The key public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of high-quality education for its pupils… 

 

Trade union facility time 

Number of employees that were relevant trade union officials during 2018/19: 0 

 

Please refer to Vision and Aims 2019 as published on the RLT website. 

Please refer to 2018/19 Transformation Plan.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.rltschools.com/vision
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Strategic Report 

Trust and Academy Performance 2018/19 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please refer to October 2019 RLT Data Pack for more detailed breakdown of 2019 outcomes. 
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Basis of preparing the financial statements  

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared in 

accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 

Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 

Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015)', Financial Reporting 

Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Academies 

Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The 

financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.  

  

The Rutland Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.  

 

Going Concern 

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to 

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the 

going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements. 

 

 
Financial Review  
 

Reserves Policy  

Establishing reserves that protect the operation of the Trust and contribute to its smooth running is good practice and 

forms part of its overall financial control and governance framework.   

 

When considering an appropriate level of reserves, the trustees consider future plans, uncertainty and funds 

management.  

  

In context, the RLT is in its infancy and is still bearing the costs of establishing an infrastructure suitable for the 

planned growth.  It is made up of small rural primary schools set in affluent locations and as a consequence is poorly 

funded due to the needs driven funding system and consequently budgets have limited flexibility.  

 

Teaching and learning is at the heart of everything we do and also the driver for the growth plan.  Given our context 

our level of reserves will be low at the early stages of our growth in order to maintain the required level of outcomes 

in teaching and learning.    

 

The in year surplus for the financial year 2018/19 will be 8% of General Annual Grant (GAG) income. The level of 

reserve is reviewed and set on an annual basis as part of the budget setting plan. Over the next three years in line with 

the Trusts growth plan the level of reserves is planned to increase as the benefits of economies of scale and 

efficiencies savings are realised.  

 

Reports to Trustees will compare the amount of reserves held with the target amount set for reserves and explain any 

shortfall or excess in reserves against target set and explain any action being taken or planned to bring reserves into 

line with target   

 

 

Principal Funding Sources  

Most of the Academy Trust’s income is obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is 

restricted to particular purposes.  The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31st August 2019 and the 

associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.    

 

During the year ended 31st August 2019, total expenditure of £6,391,478 was covered by recurrent grant funding from 

the ESFA/DfE together with the balance brought forward from the previous year.    
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At 31st August 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £3,526,100 and movements in tangible fixed assets are 

shown in note 14 to the financial statements.  The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the 

associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.    

 

A full provision has been made to cover the deficit on the Local Government pension scheme of £2,743,000 as at 31st 

August 2019.    

 

The Academy held fund balances at 31st August 2019 of £518,362 unrestricted funds, 215,527 general restricted 

funds before a pension deficit on the LGPS of £2,743,000 and £3,526,100 of restricted fixed asset funds along with  

£65,164 CIF carried forward and £25,000 Start- Up grant.  

  
Investment Policy  
The policy aims to ensure that the academy trust’s funds are used only in accordance with the law, its articles of 

association, its funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook. Additionally that the trust’s funds are used 

in a way that commands broad public support, value for money is achieved and that Trustees fulfil their duties and 

responsibilities as charitable trustees and company directors. 

 
When considering whether to make an investment, trustees will act within their powers to invest; exercise caution in 

all investments; take investment advice from a professional adviser, as appropriate and ensure that exposure to 

investment products is tightly controlled so that security of funds takes precedence over revenue maximisation 

 
Trustees will seek prior approval from the Education and Skills Funding Agency for investment transactions that are 

novel or contentious. 

 

Academy trustees delegate responsibility for the trust’s investments to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the 

chief financial officer (CFO) is responsible for producing cash flow forecasts and making decisions on investments. 

The CFO also provides information to the CEO and academy trustees, as appropriate. 

 

Funds are only invested in low risk, easily accessible accounts and a value matching the Trust monthly payroll 

obligation will be invested in an instant access account.  Funds will only be placed with banking institutions that are 

regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and with good credit ratings. 

 

The following people are authorised signatories: 

Robert Gooding - CEO and Accounting Officer 

Meg Lucas Deputy - CEO 

Emma Kirkland - Business Manager 

Anna Raine - Trustee 

 

Cash flow and current account balances are monitored regularly by the CFO to ensure immediate financial 

commitments can be met and that the current account has adequate balances to meet forthcoming commitments.  A 

maximum of £85,000 will be placed with one financial institution. This is because the first £85,000 of an investment 

is protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme. 

 
Plan for Future Periods 

Please refer to the ‘Promoting Strategic Growth of the Trust’ section above) 

 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties  
Further details regarding risk management can be found in the governance statement. 

All risks are assessed and negated to the best of the Trust’s ability through a live process – strategic planning 

proactive and a reactive process e.g. risk register, business continuity plans, PESTLE and SWOT analysis informs our 

principal risk and uncertainties, disaster policy. The key strategic risks that are identified are assessed and for the 

drivers for our strategic intent.  
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Scope of Responsibility  

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Rutland Learning Trust has an 

effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage 

rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.  

 

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting 

Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial 

management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement 

between The Rutland Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting 

to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

 

Self Evaluation 

In 2018/19 the Trustees evaluated the performance of the Rutland Learning Trust against 10 Characteristics of 

Successful Multi-Academy Trusts. These included: 

 

Overall Performance - Standards: There is clear evidence that the outcomes for young people who are educated 

within the MAT are exceeding previous performance and national expectations. 

 

MAT Characteristic 1:  
There is a well communicated strategic vision & plan that moves seamlessly from implementation into impact. The 

school improvement plan can only be delivered through support from the trust and the trust priorities can only be 

delivered through the schools 

 

MAT Characteristic 2: 
There is a clearly set out accountability framework that everyone understands including what happens when key staff 

under-perform. 

 

MAT Characteristic 3: 

Quality Assurance 

 

MAT Characteristic 4: 

There is a clear delegated framework for Governance at Trust Board and Local Academy level that makes explicit the 

accountabilities of both boards. 

 

MAT Characteristic 5: 

There are clear and transparent models of financial and resource management accountability across the trust. 

 

MAT Characteristic 6: 

School Improvement. 

 

MAT Characteristic 7: 

School to school support. 

 

MAT Characteristic 8: 

There is evidence of skilled management of Trust Risk indicators. 

 

MAT Characteristic 9: 

Succession Planning.  

 

MAT Characteristic 10: 

There is a trust wide commitment to making a contribution to local, regional and national educational networks 

beyond the MAT. 
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The ten characteristics establish a definition that categorises development against four possible stages of MAT 
maturity – Beginning, Developing, Embedding, leading.   This self-evaluation process has been further 
strengthened in 2018/19 by using, “Twenty-One Questions for Multi-Academy Trusts: Key questions a MAT board 
should ask itself.” Our next step is to establish peer review processes for the Trust Board and LGBs - and include 
self-evaluation questions in the agenda for each Full Trust Board meeting. The next external review of governance 
is planned for Spring 2020.  
 
Our 2018/9 self-evaluation is published on the RLT Website and includes Evaluative/ Impact Statements, Emerging 
Priorities and Next Steps.   
 
A review of Governance is also planned for each LGB in Spring Term 2020. A suite of documents and training 
opportunities is provided by the Trust to support the LGBs through this process.  

 Self-evaluation and LGB review - OFSTED Inspection questions.  

 SWOT appraisal of Governor Performance - How well are we performing as a team?  

 Governor skills audit.  
   Governor Profiles used to identify strengths of the LGB and to assist with recruitment. 

 CEO: Monitoring of LGB Performance.  

 Peer Reviews of LGB meetings. 
 

Full Trust Board Attendance 
 

 06.11.2018 19.12.18 11.04.19 18.07.19  

Gareth Williams  0 0   0 out of 2 

David Evans 1 1 1 0 3 out of 4 

Anna Raine 1 1 1 0 3 out of 4 

Rev. James Saunders 1 0 1 1 3 out of 4 

Amanda Sergeant 0 1 0 0 1 out of 4 

Nicole Topham 0 1 1 0 2 out of 4 

Adrienne Holland 1 1 1 1 4 out of 4 

Kristi Withers 1 1 1 1 4 out of 4 

Rob Gooding 1 1 1 1 4 out of 4 

John Bryan 1 1   2 out of 2 

Ian Blackburn  1 1 1 3 out of 3 

Rev. Peter French   1 1 2 out of 2 

Emma Keith   1 1 2 out of 2 

 
Changes to Trust Board 
Mr John Bryan appointed 26.09.2018 
Mr Ian Blackburn appointed 07.11.2018 
Mr John Bryan resigned 14.01.2019 
Mr Gareth Williams resigned 14.01.2019 
Rev. Peter French appointed 07.01.2019 
Mrs Emma Keith appointed 17.02.2019 
Mrs Amanda Percy resigned 22.08.2019 
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Audit Committee Attendance 
 

 19.12.18 11.04.19 18.07.19  

David Evans 1 0 0 1 out of 3 

Anna Raine 1 1 0 2 out of 3 

Amanda Sergeant 1 0 0 1 out of 3 

Kristi Withers 1 1 1 3 out of 3 

Rob Gooding 1 1 1 3 out of 3 

Ian Blackburn 1 0 1 2 out of 3 

 

Scrutiny Committee Attendance 

 07.09.2018 18.01.2019 15.07.2019  

Gareth Williams  0   0 out of 1 

Rev. James Saunders 0 0 1 1 out of 3 

Nicole Topham 1 0 1 2 out of 3 

Adrienne Holland 1 1 1 3 out of 3 

Rob Gooding 1 1 1 3 out of 3 

Rev. Peter French  1 0 1 out of 3 

Emma Keith   1 1 out of 1 

 

Review of Value for Money  
 
As accounting officer the Chief Executive Office has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good 
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the 
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.  
 
The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during each 
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of 
benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value 
for money during the year by: 
Improving educational results 

 

Schools OFSTED SIAMS Inspection 

Cottesmore Academy 
Sponsored Academy: 

Requires Improvement 
NA 

Empingham CE  Good Good 

Exton and Greetham CE Good Good 

Great Casterton CE Outstanding Good 

Ketton CE Primary School Outstanding Outstanding 

Langham CE Primary School Good  

St Nicholas CE Primary School Good Outstanding 

Uppingham CE Primary School Good  

Whissendine CE Primary School Outstanding Outstanding 
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 Regular and systematic review of staff deployment to ensure the best use of skills, expertise and experience. This 
ensures that the quality of teaching, learning, use of assessment and curriculum provision across the Trust is 
consistently high. The quality of teaching across the Trust is almost always good with many examples of 
outstanding practice.  

 In April 2018, the Rutland Learning Trust sponsored Cottesmore Academy.  
“The RSC anticipates that following an imminent OFSTED Cottesmore would be deemed inadequate in all areas 
and placed into Special Measures. The school does not have the capacity to improve.”  The school was 
inspected in September 2018 and now Requires Improvement. This is a substantial achievement in such a short 
space of time.  

 
“We are delighted to inform you that the lead HMI Inspector stated that Cottesmore Academy is on a very exciting 
journey and although we have got things to work on we are RAPIDLY IMPROVING - under the leadership of Mrs 
Lucas who has only been in post since April.  

▪  The recently appointed headteacher has brought ambition and drive to the school. She is establishing a culture of   
higher expectations. Staff morale is improving.  

▪  Leaders have accurately identified the most important areas for improvement. They have brought about 
improvements in the areas in which they have focused.  

▪  Standards are improving - attainment and progress. 
(PLEASE ALSO REFER TO RLT DATA DASHBOARDS and ANALYSIS) 

▪  Leaders have provided a range of support and introduced many initiatives. The quality of teaching is improving.  
▪  Behaviour is improving. Pupils are polite. They conduct themselves well at all times of the school day.  
▪  Approaches to the teaching of mathematics are improving standards  
▪  The local governing body has a secure overview of the school’s strengths and areas in which it needs to improve. 

The governing body is knowledgeable about the school’s actions and initiatives to improve standards.  
▪  There is a strong culture of safeguarding.  
▪  Leaders have made improvements to the school’s physical environment. The school is tidy and well organised. 

There is a calm atmosphere. Pupils have good manners and conduct themselves well at playtimes, lunchtimes, in 
assemblies and in school corridors at all times of the school day. Pupils are friendly and polite.  

▪  The new coordinator for the provision for pupils who have SEN and/or disabilities is rapidly strengthening school 
systems.” 

 Uppingham CE Primary School  
OFSTED. This school continues to be good.  
“You and the leadership team, together with governors, have maintained the good quality of education in the school 
since the last inspection. Your leadership of the school is respected and valued by staff and parents and carers. You 
have an in- depth understanding of the school’s strengths and areas of weakness. Your evaluation of the school is 
comprehensive and accurate. Consequently, you have identified the priorities in areas requiring further 
improvement and your planning is well considered. Governors are kept well informed about school developments 
and the extent of both challenge and support has strengthened. Governors are supportive of the headteacher and 
make regular visits to the school in support of its further improvement. The external support provided by the local 
authority and the prospective Rutland Learning Trust has been instrumental in supporting leaders’ drive for 
improvement. This support has sharpened processes to ensure consistency, clearer accountability and improved 
subject leadership. The culture of the school is positive and welcoming, staff morale is high, and the pupils are polite 
and courteous. Pupils are proud to be at the school and describe it as a friendly and fair school.” 
 
SIAMS. April 2019. This school continues to be good. 
“The strong and passionate leadership of the head teacher and governors, supported by the multi academy trust 
(MAT) and the diocese, has created a vibrant, inclusive Christian community in which everyone flourishes. The clear 
and uncompromising vision reflecting the local community, motivates and inspires everyone in the school family. 
This has a profound impact on pupil’s wellbeing. Pupils are passionate about religious education (RE). The subject is 
instrumental in helping pupils to live well together and inspires a sense of self belief. Collective worship is joyful and 
uplifting. Pupils are involved with many aspects of worship but further development of their role in planning, leading 
and evaluating would enhance this.” 
 

 We have sustained and increased the level of intervention staff and use of specialist teachers to help raise 
standards. This effective and efficient re-deployment of staff and resources has enabled the Trust to support all
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children. Through prudent strategic financial planning and maximising the use of resources we have been able 
to fund additional teachers for specialist early literacy intervention, provide additional music teaching, increase 
levels of sports coaching and employ a language specialist across the schools. These joint appointments are 
having a positive impact on children’s achievement across all ages – both for curriculum and enrichment 
opportunities. The impact of this is measured not only in terms of pupil progress but also in terms of improving 
learning dispositions, attendance, attitudes and behaviour.  
 

 Head teachers meet weekly to discuss school improvement. Activities undertaken have included: leadership 
training, policy development (Teaching, Learning and Assessment); data analysis; Pupil Premium; curriculum 
remodeling; monitoring and evaluating our Sports Strategy; communication with parents and sharing of 
outstanding practice. 
 

 The Rutland Learning Trust regularly reviews its provision and utilizes external providers to quality assure and 
benchmark our provision. Our School Improvement and Quality Assurance Team, working alongside Head 
teachers and Governors/Trustees, has reviewed all of our schools. The outcomes for each school are then 
shared with the Governors at the next meeting where the school development plan is reviewed with key 
priorities refined.   

  
Improving the quality of teaching:  
 
The overall quality of teaching in each school is almost always good with areas of outstanding practice across all 
key stages, in each setting.  This is validated through OFSTED, Diocese Inspections and other external/internal 
quality assurance monitoring activities.  
 
We strive to ensure standards continue to rise - increasing the proportion of pupils making better than expected or 
accelerated progress across all ability groups in reading, writing and maths; especially those pupils with additional 
needs (support) and disadvantaged pupils.  We endeavor to ensure all groups of pupils are offered high quality 
learning tasks that allow them to be stretched and challenged whatever their ability.  
Please refer to our Teaching and Learning - Key Priorities 2019; highlighted above.  

Financial governance and oversight 
 
The Trustees and Governors carry out a skills audit, profiling and competencies exercise to ensure suitability to 
their role.  New Trustees/Governors are actively sought to widen the skills portfolio or fill a current vacancy. As a 
result, they can use their professional experience to actively challenge decision-making and offer practical advice. 
The Trustees and Governors receive regular budget monitoring reports and medium-term planning with option 
appraisal analysis during budget setting or to consider any changes in direction. 

Fitness for purpose 
 
Through the Academy conversion process we changed our banking arrangements, we now have online banking 
ensuring better control and monitoring of the bank account. Charge cards enable us to access best value through 
online purchases. We have become a cashless Academy through a parent payment and income management tool 
reducing administration costs of cash handling and making the process more secure.  
 
We have entered into a joint procurement scheme with other local schools for the schools meals provision. 
 
In 2018/19 we have began to embed the use of PS Financials across the Trust and have recently introduced an 
automated payment system (BACS) at each Academy.  All funds are now held and managed centrally with schools 
maintaining accounts with low balances to manage local transactions.  
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Benchmarking 
Our income and expenditure is benchmarked between our academy trust schools. This has been useful in 
highlighting different levels of spend for the same services, for example photocopying contracts.   
 
We also benchmark our income and expenditure against national sample sets.  We compare at a local level, and 
then nationally based on chosen criteria. We incorporate size, location, social setting and additional needs into the 
criteria. We also benchmark for improvement looking at other high performing academies. The value of the process 
is that it prompts us to question and challenge our spending strategies or validate decision-making.  
 
Tender exercises are undertaken to ensure that high value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a 
regular basis to ensure that long-term contracts (3 to 5 years) remain competitive. 

 
For purchases above £5,000, but below the tender limit, 3 quotes are required. Where the quality and provision of 
products/or services are securely high and consistent, multiyear purchasing contracts have been entered into to gain 
discounts and best value across the Trust.  

Better income generation 
 
Grants  
 
The Academy explores every opportunity to generate income linked to the hire of Academy facilities and also linked 
to the Teaching School designation (e.g. leading conferences and courses, providing school to school support, initial 
teaching training and mentoring).  
 
In 2018/19 the Trust has also been successful with several bids for additional funding:  
DfE School Improvement     £95,200 
Royal British Legion (Service Children)          £6,880 
MOD Education Services Grant   £45,000 
RCC Prince William Award     £11,800 
Condition Improvement Fund (Exton & Greetham) £205,146   
 
Outreach work 
The Rutland Learning `Trust has achieved NLE (National Leader in Education), LLE (Local Leader in Education), Pupil 
Premium, National Support School Status and Sponsor Status. The CEO is also an OFSTED Inspector.  
 
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control  
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Rutland Learning Trust for the year ended 31 
August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 
 
Capacity to Handle Risk  
The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating, 
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of 
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's 
significant risks that has been in place for the period up to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and financial statements. This process is reviewed regularly by the board of Trustees. 
 
The Risk and Control Framework  
The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management 
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and 
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accountability. In particular it includes:  
 

 Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which 
are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees.  

 Regular reviews by the audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts 
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes  

 Setting targets to measure financial and other performance  

 Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines  

 Delegation of authority and segregation of duties  

 Identification and management of risks  
 
The board of Trustees trust employs an external financial management provider to provide support with the higher 
functions. Accountants have been appointed and carry out the annual audit of accounts to ensure compliance and 
provide assurance to the trust. The Trust also employ another company to carry out a ‘responsible officer role’ to 
report directly to the audit committee. They look at operation, process and suitability of our financial operations and 
provide assurance to the trust. The internal /reviewer provides advice on financial matters and performing a range 
of checks on the academy trust’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period 
included: testing of payroll systems, testing of purchase systems, testing of control account/ bank reconciliations.   
 
On a quarterly basis, the CFO reports to the board of trustees, through the audit committee on the operation of the 
systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibilities. 

Reviewing control and managing risks 
Regular budget reports are reviewed to ensure expenditure is in line with budgeted expectations and any variations 
explained.  Medium term planning and option appraisals are also utilised during budget planning and to consider 
new opportunities or changes in direction.  

We employ strategic planning activities such as a SWOT analysis to evaluate our internal strengths and weaknesses.  
A PESTLE identifies key external influences considering the environment we operate in. This helps inform our 
financial strategy.  
 
We are in the process of embedding a more robust trust level financial strategy that will ensure the trust continues 
to be sustainable and aligns with the EFA funding philosophy. A 5% top slicing strategy has been shared and agreed 
with the Trustees, RSC and DfE for when new schools join the Trust.  
 
Our current critical success factors are: 

 Demand: Pupil numbers, reputation, credibility, OFSTED rating 

 Growth 10 – 15 schools or 2000 pupils 

 Funding: Resilient and flexible financial model 

 Effective resource management: Staffing, Central Services, Procurement 

 Key staff retention - increased leadership capacity 
 
These critical success factors are underpinned by our Financial Aims of: 

 Value for money 

 Effectiveness 

 Sustainability.  

Cash balances held attract a small amount of interest. Investment opportunities are an area of focus for the coming 
year. The trust is also moving towards a trust level contingency rather than individual academy to ensure a higher 
level of funding is deployed or committed to the objectives of the trust.  
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Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of The Rutland Learning Trust (the 'academy trust') for the year ended 

31st August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education 

and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).  

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

-  give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31st August 2019 and of its incoming 

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended; 

-  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 

-  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 

-  have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 

2019. 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where: 

-  the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or 

-  the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for 

a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 

Other information 

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

annual report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 

report in this regard. 

 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

-  the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are 

prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

-  the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the 

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to 

you if, in our opinion: 

-  adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from 

branches not visited by us; or 

-  the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

-  certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

-  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

Responsibilities of trustees 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the 

charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and 

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary 

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of our Report of 

the Independent Auditors.   

 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members those 

matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 

by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy trust's 

members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  

 

 

 

Timothy McNeal FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of Hardings 

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 

6 Marsh Parade 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Staffordshire 

ST5 1DU 

 

Date: 19 December 2019 
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The Rutland Learning Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency  
  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an engagement to 

obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Rutland Learning Trust 

during the period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament 

and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

This report is made solely to The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our 

engagement letter.  Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA 

those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 

do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA, for our work, 

for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

 

Respective responsibilities of The Rutland Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant 

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Rutland Learning Trust's funding agreement with 

the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1st September 2018, for 

ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the 

financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and 

are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the 

Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019.  We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying 

out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 

1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial 

transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the 

ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 

explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity. 

 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently 

does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in 

a reasonable assurance engagement.  Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 

 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the 

academy trust's income and expenditure. 

 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure 

disbursed and income received during the period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 has not been applied to 

purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

 

 

Hardings 

Chartered Accountants 

6 Marsh Parade 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Staffordshire 

ST5 1DU 

 

Date: 19 December 2019 
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31/8/19 31/8/18

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed assets Restricted Total Total 

fund fund fund funds funds

Notes £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from

Donations and capital grants 2 - 95,005 321,209 416,214 2,247,646

Transfer from Local Authority

on conversion 26 240,406 3,335 (372,000) (128,259) 112,618

Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's

educational operations 3 - - 5,492,764 5,492,764 3,749,110

Other trading activities 4 14,727 - 419,312 434,039 368,544

Investment income 5 700 - - 700 264

Total 255,833 98,340 5,861,285 6,215,458 6,478,182

Expenditure on

Raising funds 7 - - 105,249 105,249 77,601

Charitable activities

Academy's educational

operations - 116,536 6,169,693 6,286,229 4,465,296

Total 6 - 116,536 6,274,942 6,391,478 4,542,897

Net income/(expenditure) 255,833 (18,196) (413,657) (176,020) 1,935,285

Transfers between funds 22 - 214,020 (214,020) - -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/losses on defined

benefit schemes - - (699,000) (699,000) 304,000

Net movement in funds 255,833 195,824 (1,326,677) (875,020) 2,239,285

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 262,529 3,330,276 (1,110,632) 2,482,173 242,888

Total funds carried forward 518,362 3,526,100 (2,437,309) 1,607,153 2,482,173

All of the academy trust's activities derive from continuing operations and acquisitions in the current year. 

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Cash Flow Statement

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

31/8/19 31/8/18

Notes £ £

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash generated from operations 27 352,106 (12,638)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities 352,106 (12,638)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (309,023) (339,070)

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 259,121 450,484

Interest received 700 264

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (49,202) 111,678

Cash flows from financing activities:

New loans in year - 85,000

Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities - 85,000

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the

reporting period 302,904 184,040

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

reporting period 438,443 254,403

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

reporting period 741,347 438,443

The notes form part of these financial statements
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1. Accounting policies

 

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have  been

prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities:  Statement

of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January  2015)',

Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic  of

Ireland', the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and  the

Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Rutland Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any  material

uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company  to

continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of one year from

the date of approval of the financial statements. 

Income

All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the academy trust has entitlement to  the

funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of  income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the  balance

sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is  not

unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as  deferred

income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is  received,

the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it  is

receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts  of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are  recognised

when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. 

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement  of

Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related  conditions),

where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it  is

probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Other income

Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent  the

academy trust has provided the goods or services. 

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the  expected

costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and 'Income from  other

trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities'  and

the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value  the

items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are  sold.

This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'. 
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1. Accounting policies - continued

 

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the

academy trust to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in  settlement

and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis  and

has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be  directly

attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use  of

resources. 

Raising funds

Raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes  and

includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading. 

Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support  costs

and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. 

Governance costs

These include the costs attributable to the academy trust’s compliance with constitutional and  statutory

requirements, including audit, strategic management and trustees’ meetings and reimbursed expenses. 

Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful

life.

Leasehold land and buildings - over the expected useful economic life

L'hold property improvements - over the expected useful economic life

Fixtures and fittings - 25% on reducing balance

Computer equipment - 25% on cost

Note that no depreciation is charged on the land element contained within the leasehold land and  buildings

category.

Assets costing £250 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of  depreciation

and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government  or

from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected  useful

economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of  Financial

Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted  fixed

asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of  the

related asset on a basis consistent with the academy trust’s depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets  have

been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until  they

are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that  the

carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed  assets

and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the  Statement

of Financial Activities. 
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Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS102. The financial assets  and

financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured  at

amortised cost as detailed in note 16.  Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured  at

amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial  instruments

disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement  has

already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. 

Stocks

Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010  and

therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,  the

academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within  categories

covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of  Chargeable

Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 

Fund accounting

Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed  by

funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by  the

funder/donor and include grants from the Education Funding Agency.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other  factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting  estimates

and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions  that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within  the

next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number  of

factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used  in

determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these  assumptions,

which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a  roll

forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31st March  2013

has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31st August 2019. Any differences between  the

figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the  carrying

amount of the pension liability. 
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1. Accounting policies - continued

 

Hire purchase and leasing commitments

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line  basis

over the period of the lease.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme  (‘TPS’)

and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are  held

separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions  over

employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially  level

percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the  Government

Actuary on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method. As stated in note 23,  the

TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets  and

liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a  defined

contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each year.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in  separate

trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on  an

actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return  on

a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations  are

obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating  surplus

are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part  of

staff costs. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Activities if the  benefits

have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until  vesting

occurs. The expected return on assets and the interest cost are shown as a net finance amount of other  finance

costs or credits adjacent to interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other gains  and

losses. 

Conversion to an academy

The conversion of three academies from state maintained schools to part of the academy trust involved  the

transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The  substance

of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below:

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from Empingham CE Primary, Great Casterton CE  Primary

and Uppingham CE Primary to the academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has  been

derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate  balance

sheet categories with a corresponding amount recognised in "Donations - transfer from local authority  on

conversion" in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted  general

funds and restricted fixed asset funds. 

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised where there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it  is

probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement  can

be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay  to

settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. 
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2. Donations and capital grants

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Transfer of Cottesmore Academy - - - 1,715,970

Donations - 86,220 86,220 41,366

Grants - 259,121 259,121 450,484

Educational visits - 70,873 70,873 39,826

- 416,214 416,214 2,247,646

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Capital grants 259,121 450,484

3. Funding for the academy's educational operations

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

DfE/ESFA revenue grant

General Annual Grant(GAG) - 4,487,943 4,487,943 3,160,346

Start up grants - 100,000 100,000 25,000

Other DfE / EFA grants - 697,626 697,626 511,072

- 5,285,569 5,285,569 3,696,418

Other government grant

Local Authority grants - 207,195 207,195 52,692

- 5,492,764 5,492,764 3,749,110

4. Other trading activities

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 14,727 - 14,727 11,829

Catering income - 48,548 48,548 55,045

Breakfast & after school club - 51,676 51,676 24,369

Receipts from supply teacher insurance

claims - 27,422 27,422 18,327

Other generated income (inc Nursery

income) - 291,666 291,666 258,974

14,727 419,312 434,039 368,544
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5. Investment income

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Deposit account interest 700 - 700 264

6. Expenditure

31/8/19 31/8/18

Non-pay expenditure

Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total

£ £ £ £ £

Raising funds

Costs of fundraising

Direct costs - - 104,128 104,128 74,604

Costs incurred by trading

for a fundraising purpose

Direct costs - - 1,121 1,121 2,997

Charitable activities

Academies educational

operations

Direct costs 3,911,076 - 296,303 4,207,379 3,009,818

Allocated support costs 644,251 815,841 618,758 2,078,850 1,455,478

4,555,327 815,841 1,020,310 6,391,478 4,542,897

Net resources are stated after charging/(crediting)

Year Ended Year Ended

31/08/19 31/08/18

£ £

Auditor's remuneration 12,000 9,500

Depreciation - owned assets 54,053 81,595

Depreciation - leasehold assets 62,483 31,455
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7. Raising funds

 

Costs of fundraising

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Educational visits - 104,128 104,128 74,604

Costs incurred by trading for a fundraising purpose

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Purchases - 1,121 1,121 2,997

Aggregate amounts - 105,249 105,249 77,601

8. Charitable activities - academy's educational operations

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Direct costs - 4,207,379 4,207,379 3,009,818

Support costs - 2,078,850 2,078,850 1,455,478

- 6,286,229 6,286,229 4,465,296

31/8/19 31/8/18

Total Total

£ £

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs 644,251 398,750

Depreciation 85,032 82,733

Technology costs 63,349 40,021

Premises costs 468,854 379,841

Other support costs 259,063 199,462

Governance costs 558,301 354,671

Total support costs 2,078,850 1,455,478
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9. Trustees' remuneration and benefits

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with  the

academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services  they

provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not  in

respect of their role as trustees.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

R Gooding (CEO and trustee):

                 Remuneration  £95,000 - £100,000 (2018: £90,000 - £95,000)

                 Employer's pension contributions £15,000 - £20,000 (2018: £15,000 - £20,000)

A Raine (Staff Trustee):

                 Remuneration  £15,000 - £20,000 (2018: £Nil)

                 Employer's pension contributions £0 - £5,000 (2018: £Nil) 

Trustees' expenses

There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31st August 2019 nor for the year  ended

31st August 2018.
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10. Staff costs

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Wages and salaries 3,597,730 2,493,516

Social security costs 299,022 205,732

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 658,575 444,449

4,555,327 3,143,697

Supply teacher costs - 11,937

4,555,327 3,155,634

Included in the above staff costs is £33,867 relating to restructuring costs. This is made up as follows:

Redundancy payments £25,115

Severance payments £8,752

Total £33,867

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the academy trust during  the

year was as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

Teachers 63 49

Administration and support 114 112

Management 11 7

188 168

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£60,001 - £70,000 1 1

£90,001 - £100,000 1 1

2 2

The above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team  as

listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received  by

key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £249,640 (2018: £485,331). 

11. Trustees' and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA),  an

alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees  and

officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business,  and

provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element  from

the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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12. Comparatives for the statement of financial activities

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed assets Restricted Total 

fund fund fund funds

£ £ £ £

Income and endowments from

Donations and capital grants - 1,969,822 277,824 2,247,646

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion 140,601 34,017 (62,000) 112,618

Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's educational

operations - - 3,749,110 3,749,110

Other trading activities 11,830 - 356,714 368,544

Investment income 264 - - 264

Total 152,695 2,003,839 4,321,648 6,478,182

Expenditure on

Raising funds - - 77,601 77,601

Charitable activities

Academy's educational operations - 113,051 4,352,245 4,465,296

Total - 113,051 4,429,846 4,542,897

Net income/(expenditure) 152,695 1,890,788 (108,198) 1,935,285

Transfers between funds - 310,218 (310,218) -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit

schemes - - 304,000 304,000

Net movement in funds 152,695 2,201,006 (114,416) 2,239,285

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 109,834 1,129,270 (996,216) 242,888

Total funds carried forward 262,529 3,330,276 (1,110,632) 2,482,173
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13. Central services

The Academy Trust provided the following central services during the year:

- school improvement and quality assurance

- educational psychologists

- payroll and personnel (HR)

- financial services

- audit and accountancy

- legal support

- facilities management

The Trust charges for these services based on a top-slice of GAG of 5% or full recharge where costs relate to  a

specific Academy.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Whissendine 34,451 34,387

St.Nicholas 28,801 26,089

Ketton 34,570 35,730

Langham 38,282 37,459

Cottesmore 36,829 16,967

Exton 16,193 8,096

Empingham CE Primary School 8,122 -

Great Casterton CE Primary School 9,877 -

Uppingham CE Primary School 16,807 -

Total 223,932 158,728
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14. Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold L'hold

land and property Fixtures and Computer

buildings improvements fittings equipment Totals

£ £ £ £ £

Cost

At 1st September 2018 1,735,182 1,473,608 178,316 235,676 3,622,782

Additions - 263,573 30,640 14,810 309,023

Transfer on joining Trust - - 3,335 - 3,335

At 31st August 2019 1,735,182 1,737,181 212,291 250,486 3,935,140

Depreciation

At 1st September 2018 10,501 36,952 63,123 181,928 292,504

Charge for year 31,504 30,979 35,569 18,484 116,536

At 31st August 2019 42,005 67,931 98,692 200,412 409,040

Net book value

At 31st August 2019 1,693,177 1,669,250 113,599 50,074 3,526,100

At 31st August 2018 1,724,681 1,436,656 115,193 53,748 3,330,278

With the exception of Cottesmore Academy, the trust has not included any amount in respect of the value of  land

and buildings as a result of instructions from the diocese. Whilst the diocese are in discussion with the ESFA  to

agree how such assets should be treated and disclosed the trust has determined that they should be accounted  for

in accordance with the instructions of the diocese.

If the value of the land and buildings were accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA  the

overall closing position of the total funds would not be a deficit. 

15. Stocks

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Stocks 3,771 -

16. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Trade debtors 90,862 81,831

Other debtors 1,768 1,768

VAT 193,920 217,398

Prepayments and accrued income 266,755 235,660

553,305 536,657
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17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Trade creditors 27,423 158,724

Social security and other taxes 95,830 60,558

Other creditors 12,839 10,649

Accruals and deferred income 105,365 41,823

Deferred government grants 147,913 122,451

389,370 394,205

Deferred income and government grants

2019 2018

£ £

Deferred income and government grants at 1st September 2018 122,451 89,924

Resources deferred in the year 159,450 122,451

Amounts released from previous years (122,451) (89,924)

Deferred income and government grants at 31st August 2019 159,450 122,451

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance the following relating to  the

2019/20 academic year:

UIFSM 118,415 98,401

Devolved Formula Capital 29,498 24,050

Trip Income 11,537 -

159,450 122,451

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Other loans (see note 19) 85,000 85,000

19. Loans

The above loan has been received from the ESFA due to the entry of Cottesmore Academy into the  Rutland

Learning Trust. The trust will commence repayments of the loan in 2021 with the amount due to be repaid  by

2024. 

20. Leasing agreements

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Within one year 10,106 8,709

Between one and five years 14,410 10,650

24,516 19,359
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21. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of  it

being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount  as

may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member. 

22. Movement in funds

Net Transfers

movement in between

At 1.9.18 funds funds At 31.8.19

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General fund 262,529 255,833 - 518,362

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 123,864 97,297 (5,634) 215,527

Pension liability (1,344,000) (1,399,000) - (2,743,000)

Restricted fixed assets fund 3,330,276 (18,196) 214,020 3,526,100

Start up grant - 25,000 - 25,000

CIF Fund 109,504 164,046 (208,386) 65,164

2,219,644 (1,130,853) - 1,088,791

TOTAL FUNDS 2,482,173 (875,020) - 1,607,153

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General fund 255,833 - - 255,833

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 4,487,944 (4,390,647) - 97,297

Other DfE / EFA grants 697,626 (697,626) - -

Local Authority grants 207,195 (207,195) - -

Other 576,404 (576,404) - -

Pension liability (372,000) (328,000) (699,000) (1,399,000)

Restricted fixed assets fund 98,340 (116,536) - (18,196)

Start up grant 100,000 (75,000) - 25,000

CIF Fund 164,116 (70) - 164,046

5,959,625 (6,391,478) (699,000) (1,130,853)

TOTAL FUNDS 6,215,458 (6,391,478) (699,000) (875,020)

Page 55



The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

22. Movement in funds - continued

 

Comparatives for movement in funds

Net Transfers

movement in between

At 1.9.17 funds funds At 31.8.18

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted Funds

General fund 109,834 152,695 - 262,529

Restricted Funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 137,551 (15,597) 1,910 123,864

Other DfE / EFA grants 14,233 (14,233) - -

Pension liability (1,148,000) (196,000) - (1,344,000)

Restricted fixed assets fund 1,129,270 1,890,788 310,218 3,330,276

CIF Fund - 421,632 (312,128) 109,504

133,054 2,086,590 - 2,219,644

TOTAL FUNDS 242,888 2,239,285 - 2,482,173

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General fund 152,695 - - 152,695

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 3,160,348 (3,175,945) - (15,597)

Other DfE / EFA grants 511,073 (525,306) - (14,233)

Local Authority grants 52,692 (52,692) - -

Other 437,903 (437,903) - -

Pension liability (287,000) (213,000) 304,000 (196,000)

Restricted fixed assets fund 2,003,839 (113,051) - 1,890,788

Start up grant 25,000 (25,000) - -

CIF Fund 421,632 - - 421,632

6,325,487 (4,542,897) 304,000 2,086,590

TOTAL FUNDS 6,478,182 (4,542,897) 304,000 2,239,285
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22. Movement in funds - continued

 

Purposes of unrestricted funds

Included in unrestricted funds includes the surplus on conversion from a local authority school, income  from

outsourcing of staff and other income generated from the other small donations, etc. which carry no  specific

restrictions. These funds are available for the academy trust to use as deemed appropriate.

Purposes of restricted funds

The General Annual Grant represents the grant funding received from the ESFA in order to cover the  on-going

costs of the academy trust. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was  not

subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.

Other DfE/ESFA grants received include amounts to cover the cost of insurance, and pupil premiums.

Local Authority grants include nursery / early years funding as well as funding to support children with  special

education needs.

The Trust received a total of £100,000 by way of Start-Up Grants during the year. £75,000 related to the  three

in-year convertors. The closing balance of £25,000 on the Start-Up Grant fund represents monies received  in

relation to Glapthorn Primary School, which is due to join the Trust in 2019/20.

The balance on the CIF fund represents monies received but not yet spent as the projects to which they relate  are

not yet completed.

Purposes of restricted fixed assets funds

The restricted fixed assets funds reflects resources received by the academy trust to acquire assets for  continuing

use and furtherance of the trust's aims and objectives. Resources expended reflect the associated  depreciation

charges as set out on the accounting policies.
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Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31st August 2019 were allocated as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Central Fund 125,260 107,182

Whissendine 37,714 29,792

Ketton 11,204 23,776

St Nicholas 10,298 517

Langham 104,659 78,001

Exton 97,089 138,929

Cottesmore 98,450 8,196

Empingham 91,313 -

Uppingham 59,253 -

Great Casterton 98,649 -

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 733,889 386,393

CIF Fund 65,164 109,504

Start-Up Fund 25,000 -

Restricted fixed assets funds 3,526,100 3,330,276

Pension reserve (2,743,000) (1,344,000)

Total 1,607,153 2,482,173

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the period was as follows:

Teaching and

educational Other costs

support staff Other support Educational (excluding)

costs staff costs supplies depreciation Total

£ £ £ £ £

Whissendine 706,258 77,277 28,641 288,974 1,101,150

Ketton 569,488 76,624 34,274 93,826 774,212

St Nicholas 540,120 85,351 33,800 180,369 839,640

Langham 771,397 109,345 41,730 122,982 1,045,454

Exton 238,688 86,279 24,062 36,870 385,899

Cottesmore 497,682 104,959 58,737 44,237 705,615

Empingham 129,786 20,739 9,231 46,910 206,666

Uppingham 266,256 47,672 13,633 68,870 396,431

Great Casterton 135,498 36,005 8,896 54,285 234,684

Central 55,903 - 43,302 157,986 257,191

3,911,076 644,251 296,306 1,095,309 5,946,942
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23. Pension and similar obligations

 

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme  England

and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)  for

non-teaching staff, which is managed by Leicestershire County Council. Both are multi-employer  defined

benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31st March 2012 and of the LGPS  31st

March 2016.

There were no outstanding contributions at the beginning or end of the financial year. 

Teachers' pension scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by  the

Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from  1st

January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of  contract,

although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis these contributions  along

with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid  by

public funds provided by Parliament. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS  in

accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published  by

HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme  valuations

are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors.  The

latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the  Public

Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published  by

the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent  consultation

are:

- employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer

administration charge)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions

together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional

past service deficit of £14,900 million

-  an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

- the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real

earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.48%, which was payable from September  2015.

The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the  employer

contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1st September 2019.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £354,000 (2018: £258,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has  accounted

for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above  the

information available on the scheme. 
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Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate  trustee-administered

funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31st August 2019 was £379,000 (2018: £236,000),  of

which employer’s contributions totalled £305,000 (2018: £186,000) and employees’ contributions  totalled

£74,000 (2018: £50,000) The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.7% for employers and  the

contribution for employees is dependant upon salary banding.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event  of

academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department  for

Education. The guarantee came into force on 18th July 2013. 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Present value of funded obligations (5,931,000) (3,602,000)

Fair value of plan assets 3,188,000 2,258,000

(2,743,000) (1,344,000)

Deficit (2,743,000) (1,344,000)

Liability (2,743,000) (1,344,000)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Current service cost 496,000 365,000

Net interest from net defined benefit asset/liability 119,000 82,000

Past service costs 91,000 -

706,000 447,000

Actual return on plan assets 129,000 51,000
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23. Pension and similar obligations

  - continued

 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Defined benefit obligation 3,602,000 2,824,000

Current service cost 496,000 365,000

Past service costs 91,000 -

Contributions by scheme participants 74,000 50,000

Interest cost 119,000 82,000

Benefits paid (39,000) (34,000)

Business combinations 760,000 568,000

Remeasurements:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions (329,000) -

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions 1,157,000 (253,000)

5,931,000 3,602,000

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Fair value of scheme assets 2,258,000 1,676,000

Contributions by employer 305,000 186,000

Contributions by scheme participants 74,000 50,000

Interest income on plan assets 73,000 48,000

Benefits paid (39,000) (34,000)

Business combinations 388,000 281,000

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) 129,000 51,000

3,188,000 2,258,000

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions 329,000 -

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions (1,157,000) 253,000

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) 129,000 51,000

(699,000) 304,000

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

Equities 58% 62%

Bonds 31% 27%

Property 8% 9%

Cash 3% 2%
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23. Pension and similar obligations

  - continued

 

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

31/8/19 31/8/18

Discount rate 1.8% 2.8%

Future salary increases 3.3% 3.4%

Future pension increases 2.3% 2.4%

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50%

Inflation assumption CPI 2.3% 0%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31/8/19 At 31/8/18

Retiring today

Males 21.2 22.1

Females 23.4 24.3

Retiring in 20 years

Males 22.2 23.8

Females 24.7 26.2

Sensitivity Analysis

Approx monetary amount

Change in assumption as at : 31/08/19 31/08/18

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate £733,000 £425,000

0.5% increase in Salary Increase Rate £52,000 £39,000

0.5% increase in Pension Increase Rate £669,000 £669,000

24. Related party disclosures

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from  local

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees  have

an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements  of

the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1st April 2019 and obtaining  their

approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement  procedures

relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place during the year. 
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25. Licence to occupy

The directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance, in agreement with the Board of Education of  the

Diocese of Peterborough, own the freehold interest in the buildings and some open land both of which  are

occupied by The Rutland Learning Trust on a rent free licence to occupy.

This continuing permission of their trustees is pursuant to, and subject to, the Trustees' charitable objects, and  is

part of the Church of England's contribution to provide State funded education in partnership with the State  and

detailed in a supplemental agreement with the Trust. The licence delegates aspects of the management of the  land

(and buildings) to the Academy Trust company for the time being, but does not vest any rights over the land  in

the Academy Trust company, the terms of which have been agreed between the Secretary of State and  the

directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance, and within which is contained a termination clause  on

the directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance giving two years notice. The Trustees  have

concluded that the land and buildings should not be recognised as an asset of the academy as the Academy  Trust

does not control the asset.

The financial statements do not reflect any notional rental expense for the donated use of the land and  buildings

as the trustees have concluded that no reliable figure can be measured for this donation as there are no  rental

premises for academy operations which are considered to be comparable and reliably measured. 

26. Conversion to an academy

On 1st March 2019, Empingham Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act  2010

and joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The  Rutland

Learning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred  were

valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with  a

corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as  voluntary

income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition  in

the SOFA is as follows:

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset

funds funds funds Total

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets

- freehold land and buildings - - - -

- leasehold land and buildings - - - -

- other tangible fixed assets - - 3,335 3,335

Budget surplus on LA funds  91,102 - - 91,102

LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (79,000) - (79,000)

Net assets/(liabilities) 91,102 (79,000) 3,335 15,437

On 1st March 2019, Great Casterton Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act  2010

and joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The  Rutland

Learning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred  were

valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with  a

corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as  voluntary

income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition  in

the SOFA is as follows:
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Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset

funds funds funds Total

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets

- freehold land and buildings - - - -

- leasehold land and buildings - - - -

- other tangible fixed assets - - - -

Budget surplus on LA funds  107,429 - - 107,429

LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (129,000) - (129,000)

Net assets/(liabilities) 107,429 (129,000) - (21,570)

On 1st March 2019, Uppingham Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies A 2010  and

joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The  Rutland

Learning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred  were

valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with  a

corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as  voluntary

income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition  in

the SOFA is as follows:

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset

funds funds funds Total

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets

- freehold land and buildings - - - -

- leasehold land and buildings - - - -

- other tangible fixed assets - - - -

Budget surplus on LA funds  41,875 - - 41,875

LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (164,000) - (164,000)

Net assets/(liabilities) 41,875 (162,000) - (122,125)

27. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement

of financial activities) (176,020) 1,935,285

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 116,536 113,051

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA (259,121) (450,484)

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion 128,259 (112,618)

Interest received (700) (264)

Assets/pension on Conversions - (1,715,969)

Cash on Conversions 240,406 140,601

Increase in stocks (3,771) -

Increase in debtors (16,648) (234,705)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (4,835) 99,465

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 328,000 213,000

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 352,106 (12,638)
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